INTERNATIONAL

Digtr.
COVENANT GRIBRAL
'ON CIVIL AND corn/o/sm.166
POLITICAL RIGHTS ENGLISH

Originals: FRENCH

HUMAY RIGHTS CCMMITITER
Seventh session

SUMMARY RECCRD OF THE 166th MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, & August 1979, at 3 p.i.

Chairman:. Sir Vincent EVANS

COHTENTS

Consideration of reporis submitted by States parties under article 40 of
the Covenant: initial revorts of States parties due in 1977 (continued)

-

- ‘Report of Cyprus (continued)

This record is subject 1o correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They
sirould be set forth in a memorandum and zlso incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this document to
the Official Records Bditing Section, Roowm E.6108, Palais des Nations, CGeneva.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendun, to be issued shortly after the end of the
session.

GE.79-3117




CCPR/C/SR.166
page 2

The meeting was called to order at %.20 p.m.

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS SUBMITTED BY STATES PARTIES UNDER ARTICLE 40 OF THE
COVEMANT: . INTTTAL REPORT OF STATES PARPIES DUE IN 1977 (4genda item 5) (continued)

Report of Cyprus (CCPR/C/1/Add.28) (continued)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that, following informal consultations in which various
members of the Committee had participated, it had been agreed, without prejudice
to the procedure to be followed subsequently, that the representative of Cyprus
would take the floor during the current meeting immediately after each member in
order to reply to his questions. '

2. If there were no objection, he would take it that the Committee wished to
adopt that procedure.

3. It was so decided.

4e Mr. JANCA thanked the delegation and Government of Cyprus fo;{%he fruitful
dialogue they had undertaken with the Committee for the second fdme in two years.
The report submitted gave a clear and complete picture of the most important legal
norms in force in the Republic of Cyprus through which it wed implementing its
obligations. However, 1t should be borne in mind that thée Republic was unable in
practice to ensure implementation throughout its territory, part of which was
occupied by a neighbouring power, and that the Govexmment of Cyprus had not in fact
declared a state of emergency although the Constitution entitled it to do so.

5. Referring to the fact that the Covenant formed part of Cypriot municipal
legislation and took precedence over any other municipal law, he said he wished

to know whether that meant. that thé ¢ourts of the Republic of Cyprus were
authorized to implement the provisions of the Covenant directly when they were
incompatible with internal legislation ox, when the latter did not cover the case,
by recourse to an additional procedure. In that connexion, he agked whether
Section 27, paragraph 2, of Chapter 154 of the Cyprus Criminal Code, which provided
that the death penalty could not be passed on persons under the age of 16, was
currently applicable or whether the Courts were obliged to conform to article 6,
paragraph 5, of the Covenant which stated that sentence of death should not be
imposed for crimes committed by persons below 18 years of age. Similarly, he
wondered how article 23, paragraph 4, of the Covenant wag applied when the
Constitution of Cyprus guaranteed only the rights referred to in paragraphs 1,

2 and 3 of that article, if he had interpreted the report correctly
(cOPR/C/1/444.28, p. 145.

6. He was pleased to note that the Constitution of the Republic of Cyprus was
more complete than the Covenant with regard to the grounds on which no discrimination
could be justifiable and that the same applied to the equality of rights between
men and women. In that connexion and with refercnce to article 40, paragraph 1
of the Covenant, he said he would be grateful if the Cypriot Govermment would
provide some statistical data on the progress achieved in the implementation of
the principle of equality between men and women in the enjoyment of their rights.
For example, it would be interesting to learn how many women were members of the
House of Representatives, how many women were judges in Cyprus, whether the
percentage of women ‘énrolled at the universities had increased in recent years,
and what the proportion of women students was as compared to men students.



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 3

7. It vas surprising that the report contained no information, in connexion with
article 14 of the Covenant, on the judicial system in the Republic of Cyprus and
particularly on the independence and impartiality of its courts. He would like to
Iknmow how the judicial system.was organized; whether judges were elected ox
nominated ; and, if they were elected, how long their term of office was and vhat
conditions were required; wvhether Judges could be removed from office before
their term expired and, if so, by whom and on vhat grounds.

8. My, IOUCADOES (Cyprus), speaking at the invitation of the Chairman, said, in
ansver to the first question raised, that the provisien in the Criminal Code to the
effect that the death penalty could not be passed on persons under the age of 16
would be declared inoperativé in view of the fact that the Covenant fixed the age
limit at 18.

9. On the second question, he said that there was no specific legislation
governing equality of rights between men and women, but that any legal provision
incompatible with that principle would be declared null and void, as was evident
from the decisions of the Supreme Court of the Republic of Cyprus. Any woman could
be a member of the House of Representatives and of the Government. All women could
be ¢ivil sexvants and there were in fact a large number of them., After pointing
out that there was no university in the Republic of Cyprus, he stated that, in
other educational institutions, the number of women was about equal to that of men.

10, Ulth regard to the third question, he said that Supreme Court judges were, in
accordance with the Constitution, appointed jointly by the President and
Vice-President of the Republic and, as things stood in the absence of a
Turkish~Cypriot Vice-President, by the President alone. They could only be

removed from office through the decision of the Supreme Court for professional
misconduct or for medical reasons, They remained in office until the age of 68.
Those conditions were also valid for the Attorney-General of the Republic and the
deputy Attorney-General and no law could alter those conditions to their detriment.
The members of the district courts were appointed by the Judicial Council which was
made up of the Supreme Court judges, the Attorney-General of the Republic and a
member of the Bar. They could be removed from office only by the Judicial Council
for misconduct or on medical grounds.

11. My, SADI, referring to the part of the report (CCPR/C/1/A3d.28) concerning
article 2, paragraph 1 of the Covenant, asked whether the Constitution of Cyprus
tolerated discrimination.

12. With regard to article 6 of the Covenant, he was surprised to note the
absence of -a reference in the report to genocide among the most serious crimes
punishable by the death penalty, whereas piracy was listed. In connexion with the
implementation of article 7 of the Covenant in Cyprus, he asked what measuves the
Cypriot Govermment envisaged to combat torture, since it was not sufficient merely
to declare it illegal.

13. In the context of article 18 of the Covenant, he referred to article 18,
paragraph 2 of the Constitution of the Republic of Cyprus as quoted in the report
(page 12); and said he wondered why religions whose rites were secret could not
be freely practised. Article 18, paragraph 5 of the Constitution was, in his view,
incompatible with the Covenant, because it was possible in the case of some
religions, such as Islam for example, to use moral compulsion to prevent a person
from changing his religion.



CCPR/C/SR.166
vage 4

14. He thought that the principle set forth in article 18, paragraph 7, of the
Constitution was incompatible with the Covenant, or at any rate with the basic
principles of the monotheistic religions, in particular.

15, On fthe subject of Chapter 154, Section 40, of the Cypriot Criminal Code,
referred to (page 1% of the report) in comnexion with article 20, paragraph l:

of the Covenant, he congidered it could have dangerous implications in that it

could 'alsd mean that any person who, with lawful authority, carried on, or made
preparation for carrying on or aided ‘in or advised the carrying on of, or preparation
for, any war or warlike undertaking in the Republic would not be guilty of .a crime.
Referring ‘to article 48 (Chapter 154) of the Cypriot Criminal Code (page 13 of the
report), he said that the act of merely raising discontent could be a legitimate
democratic act devoid of any sediftious intention; on the other hand, in connexion
with article 51 (Lhapter 1)/) of the Code, cited on page 1% of the report wnder
article 20, paragraph 2 of the Covenent, he commented that promotion of 1ﬁ9L¢ngu

of 111 will between different classes or commmities or persons was a very ‘serioug.
offence, particularly in a country which had suffered much from that kind of conduct,
which should not be classified as a mere misdemcanour.

16, Mr. LOUCAIDES (Cyprus) said that the phrasc "wiless there is express prOV1510n
to the contrary in this CO“"olbutlon”, which appeared in article 28 of the Cypriot .
Constitution (page 2 of the report), referred to the sharing of political rights
between Turkish and Greek Cypriots provided for by the Constitution., It also .
applied to foreigners who did not enjoy the mecognized political rights of Cypriot
nationals and who, unlike nationals, cou?d,;;n certain circumstances, be deported
from the country. '

17, In reply to Mr., Sadi's question on genocide, he pointed out that that crime
came under the general category of murder. As for inhuman and degrading -treatment
and the measures taken to combat torture, there were several remedies available %o
all which were indicated in the legislation (habeus corpus, demages, etc.).

18. The case covered by Section 40 (uhapter 154) of the Cypriot Criminal Code
(under article 9 of the Jovenant, page 1% of the report) was one in vhich Cypriot
citizens joined invaders of the island, thexreby forcing the Cypriot army Yo fight
against both the invader and other CvPriors. That provision did nol authorize one
part of the population to wage war against anotner part of the populatlon, whatevev
the cirdumstances’ .

19, With regard %o the "discontent" referred to in article 438 (Chapter 154) of

the Cypriot Criminal Code (mentioned on page 15 of the report under arbicle 20,
paragraph 2, of the Covenant), it should be noted that diszcontent provoked for
genuinely democratic reasons was not covered by the article. In fact, article 48 .
(Chapter 154) of the Criminal Code made it guite clear that it was lawful to draw
attention to errors by the authoritics cr to lacunae in the Lonstltutlon, legislation,
administration of justice, etc., if the aim was to correct those shortcomings by
legal means or to bring about the necessary changes. Article 48 (Lhaptcr 154) of

the Code covered only those cases where the discontent or dlsaffeotlon wau ralaed
with sedltlous intention for degtructive purposes ‘

20. He Jent on to explajn that the limitations imposed on frecdom of'religlon‘ln
article 18, paragraph 2 of the Cypriot COﬂut’b“tlon, (page 12 of the report) came -
within the framevork of article 18, paragraph 3, of the Covenant: +they were in
fact limitations needed to protect public safety and order, Thus, for example,
associations pursuing uwnlawlful objectives could, under cover of secret religicus
rites, engage in activities contrary to public order.



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 5

21, Turning to the next question asked by Mr. Sadi on the subject of the use of
compulsion referred to in paragraph 5 of the same article of the Constitution,
he explained that the restriction was a necessary one to safeguard the morals
and basic rights of citizens, because the use of compulsion was incompatible
with the right to profess a religion and to choose it freely. Moreover it was
perfectly reasonable to think that, up to a certain age, a child was not able
freely to choose the religion he wished to profess. The selection of 16 years
of age was not an arbitrary one in the zocial context in Cyprus. Incidentally,
that age, had also been selected by numerous other countries. In any case, at
the age of 16, the adolescent could renounce the religion that had been ohose
for him, :

22, With regard to the penalties provided under article 51 (chapter 154) of

the Criminal Code for any person who promoted "feelings of ill will between
different classes or commmitics or persons in Cyprus” (vage 13 of the report)
there were also certain other articles of the Criminal Code which made it plain
that the penalty provided for in article 51 was proportionate to the offence.

In any case, the question of proportionality of penaltics was not covered by the
Covenant, -

23. Mz, DIEYE said, w1th reference to the 1niormatlon given in the report in
conmexion with article 2, paragraph 3, of the Coveonant {end of page 2 and

beginning of page 3 of the report), that he would like to know whether the

Supreme Court had exclusive competence ~ as the passage of the report in question
seemed to imply - to rule that a legislative provision was contrary to a constitutional
provisioh, or whether that plea could be put forward in any court and, in particulaw,
during an actual case, in the one hearing the case and compebtent vatione materia?

He wondered whether such a court could give an immediate ruling .or whethér the

plea would cause the hearing to be suspended, If only the Supreme Court had
competence, it would be useful to know whether the case could be submitted to 1t
directly by an individual or only by the executive authority?

24, DMorecover, the meaning of Lho order of "prohibition" (certlorarl), roferrcd

to in the second paragraph on page 3 of the report, was not entirely clear,

and he feared lest it might hamper the course of justice and frustrate the appeals
procedure.

25. A subsequent paragraph on the same page referred to the enforcement of legal
remedics., He wondered whether such enforcement was free of charge or whether it
had to be carried out through a mlnlsterlal official, thus implying the payment of
fees.,

26. Before the events which had shaken the Cypriot institutions, the exercise of

the prerogative of mercy had rested jointly with the President and the Vice-President
of the Republic in the case of a person sentenced to death and with the President

or Vice-President jointly with the District Attorney and the Deputy District’
Attorney in the case of a lesser gentence., It would be useful to know whether

those provisions had been modified in view of the ourrent situation

27. On page 7 of the reporb (wder article 9 of the" Covenant), it was stated

in paragraph 6 that the total period of remand in custody should not éxceed.three
months from the date of arrest. He wondered whether it was to be deduced from
that statement that the investigation could not continue beyond a period of

three months., If so, it was a provision that could not but be welcomed.



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 6

28, To casure that the prison adminisiration operated in satisfactory conditions
and that sentences. were served in normal circumstances, it was necessary for the
Judge who had imposed the:sentence to have the right to inspect the prison
administrations He would like to know vhether the Cyprio? prison aduministration
came under the exccubive authority or the judiciary and whether a judge had a

say regarding the manner in vhich séntences were served.

29. Article 13, paragraph 2, of the Constitution of Cyprus (cuoted in connexion
with article 12 of the Covenant, on page 8 of the report) referred to "reasonable
restrictions" which could be imposed by law on the right of every person to leave
the territory of the Cypriot Republic. He asked what was meant by "reasonahle
restrictions" and in what circumstances they could he iwmposed.

30. On the subject of the deportation orders referred o on page 8 of the report,
(under article 13 of ‘the Convention), he asked vhether they might not include a
provisional enforcement clause notvithstanding any appeal that might have been
submitted by the person concerned. If so, the recourse appeared to be of little
value since the alien had to leave the country. ‘

31. Iastly, page 16 of the report dealt (in connexion with article 25 of the
Covenant) with the qualifications required of a candidate for election to the
Chamber of Representatives. One of the qualifications wes that the candidate had
not been convicted of an offence involving "moral turpitude" (article 64 (c) of

the Constitaution of Cyprus). He would like to know the legal significance of that
expression and what offences could be regarded as involving 'moral turpitude®.

32. Mr, LOUCAIDES (Cyprus) said that the question of the illegality or
unconstitutionality of legislation could be raised at any stage in a trial and
by any one of the parties, but that it had to be relevant to the trial. The
court would then give a ruling and its decision could be appealed. If it was a
question of the illegality of an administrative act, the only possible procedure
vas to have recourse to the Supreme Court, wnder article 146 of the Constitution.
As for the possibility given to the Supreme Courit to issue an order of "certiorari,
that was an auwxiliary and complementary procedure to which roccourse could be had
in conjunction with an appeal. It made it possible to prevent a court that was
incompetent to hear a case from remaining seized of it and was thus a procedure
that might prove faster and more effective than an appeal in certain cases.

3%, Civil judgments were enforced by the court uhich had handed down the judgment
and which wes empowered to take various steps. The enforcement of judicial
decisions vas free of charge and did not require action by a ministerial official.

54. BSince the abandonment by the Vice-President.of his post, the prerogative of
nercy vas exercised by the President of the Republic, whatever the origin of the
applicant. - There had already been several cases,

35, With regard to the maximum period of three mwonths provided in article 11,
paragraph 6, of the Constitution of Cyprus (page 7 of the report) for the remand
in custody of the person arrested, he said that once that time-limit had been
reached, the police had to release the detainee immediately but could continue the
investigation.



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 7

36. The judge had no say in the manner in which sentences were served, but there
were regulations governing the conditions of detention, which were adapted to the .
‘gravity of the crime. The Government of Cyprus had recently decided to adopt
gome libexal and humanitarian measures such as conditional release, and to allow -
prisoners -to be visited by members of their families under certain conditions,
If prisoners were subaected to treatment contrary to the law, there was.a right of
appeal against the prison authorltles for redress and for respect of the rights

of the convicted person.

37. Among the restrictions on the right to leave the territory of Cyprus, mention.
should be made of those which concerned young men who had to perform militaxy
service. To be authorized to leave the terrltory of Cyprus, they had -to be
released from their military obligations.

38.  Expulsion orders could form the subject of a suspension procedure which was

the same as in the case of other administrative acts. The Supreme Court had in
fact the power to issue a provisional order suspending the execution of an
administrative act. The record of the decision was communicated to the person
concerned., On another point, he said that no case had yet occurred which would
make it possible to determine the exact meaning of the expression "moral turpitude'.
1t would seem, however, that i1t related to immoral acts such as rape.

39 Mr. BOUZIRI, after referrlng to the first two pwragraphs of the report ‘of
Cyprus fCCPR?C71/Add 28) and article 169, paragraph 3, of the Constitution of
Cyprus, said he wondered what was actually the status of the Convention in Cyprus.
He also wondered why the report indicated (page 1) that the Republic of Cyprus
had adopted a number of legislative measures to give effect to certain provisions
of the Covenant, when the second paragraph of the same report stated that the
Covenant formed part of the municipal law of Cyprus and had superior force to any
other munlclpal'law. He asked vhether certain provisions of the Convenant which
had not been the subject of 1egislat1ve measures were not applicable in the
territory of Cyprus and vhether the Covenant had superior force to the Constitution
of Cyprus. . o :

40. Turthermore, with regard to article O of the Covenant the report stated
(page 5) that under the Cypriot Criminal Code (ohapter 154, section 27), the death
sentence could not be passed on persons under the age of 16, However, the age
stipulated in article 6, paragraph 5, of the Covenant was 18 years. He would like
to know vhether or not the provision in the Criminal Code was operative.

41. Article 11, paragraph 2 (e), of the Constitution of Cyprus (quoted on

page 6 of the report) provided for the detention of persons of uwnsound mind. He
asked whether a person so detained could be visited by friends or members of his
family and what recourse was available to such a person or the members of hlo
family in the event that he had been wrongly detained.

42, With regard .to artlcle 14, paragraph (d) of the. Covenant, it was stnted in .
the' report (page 10)° that in practice, the absence of a general scheme of legal aid
had not been a source of injustice in criminal cases. He uould like to know what
was the basis for that statément. . '

43, Article 22, baragraph 1, of the Constitution of Cyprus: concerned marriage
legislation but it was unclear vhether that legislation specified the minimum age
at which men and women could enter into a contract of marriage,




CCPR/C/SR.166
page 8

44, The Birthalaw requxred that all bvirths should be reglstered. He asked _
whether, if that prov181on were not respected, offenders were liable to prosecutlon.

45. Lastly, with regard to artlcle 25 of the Covenant, he would 1ike to know
whether when the situation had been normal in Cyprus, civil service recruitment
had taken account of the existence of two different communities or whether it
had been based solely on considerations of personal competence.

46, Mrs LOUCATDES (Cyprus) said, with respect to the death penalty, that if
there was a conflict between article 6 of the Covenant and the provisions of
article 27 of chapter 154 of the Criminal Code, the Covenant . prevailed because
it had superior force to all municipal laws other than the Constitution, which
was the supreme law of the Republic as established in constitubional article 179.
When ratifying the Covenant, the Cypriot Govermment had acted in the belief that
the Constitution and legal order of Cyprus were in accordance with its provisions.
The legislative measures adopted to give effect to certain provisions of the
Covenant concerned only those which could not be regarded as automatically
applicable. That in no way contradicted the statement that the Covenant, once
ratified had become part of the municipal legislation of Cyprus.

47, With regard to the detention of mentally disturbed persons, such persons eould
be detained only in the manner prescribed by law, which meant that the deterﬁ1on
was conditioned by numerous guarantees designed as a protection against

arbitrary axrrest.

48. Tor the time being, there was no universally applicable system of legal
assistance in force in Cyprus. Legislative provision had been made for an
advocate to be agsigned to defend accused persons but only in certain cases
relating to judgements of an Assize Court, However, the Supreme Court of Cyprus.
had interpreted that provision in such a way as to extend it to all criminal
proceedings. All defendants in criminal cases were therefore entitled to

legal assisbance. Appeals to the Supreme Court did not seem to have given rise
to any difficulties so far, because the costs were moderate. In the case of
civil proceedings, he could not recall a case in which a person had been in
difficulty for want of legal assistance,

49, The marriageable age was fixed by ecclesiastical law. In the case of
Christians of the Orthodox Greek Church, it was set at 16 years of age for women
and 18 years of age for men. In the case of Moslems, the age was the same for men
and women, namely, 18 years. '

50, Failure to register a birth was a punishable act, but hé was unable to say
what the penalty was as he had no information on the subject.

51, With regard to the appointment of civil servants, the proportions up to 1963

had been seven Greek Cypriots for every three Turkish Cypriots. The proportion

had been the same in the Govermment, but in the Army it had been six Greek Cypriots

for every four Turkish Cypriots. It should, perhaps, be explained in that connexion
that the Turkish population of Cyprus represented approximately 20 per cent of the total.
Since 1963, following the adoption of Act No. 33/67, all Cypriot citizens were

entitled to apply for posts in the civil service irrespective of their ethnic

origin or religion. Their appointment depended solely on their gualifications

and abilities. Between 1963 and 1974, there had been Turkish Cypriots in the



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 9

civil service and diplomatic services of Cyprus. At ove time, the Cypriot
Govermment had proposed to the Turks of Cyprus that the discriminatory provisions
in the Cypriot Constitution should be abolished. The reply, a catbegorical refusal,
had come not from the Turkish Cypriots but from Ankara.

52. lr. PRADO VALIEJO said he would like to know the size of the population
of the military Base Areas in Cyprus, which were under the sovereignty of a
foreign power, and asked how the Govermment of Cyprus was able to ensure the
promotion of human rights in the Base Areas, , '

5%. In article 11, paragraph 6 of the Cyprlot Constitution, quoted in the
report of Cyprus (CCPR/C/1/Add. 28) urder article 9 of the Covenant, it was
stated that the judge before whom the person arrested was brought should
prompily praceed to inquire into the grounds of the arrest. He wondered

what presisely that meant and whether provisional detention extended until

the substantive inquiries had been completed and depended on the length of the
inquiries, as the paragraph seemed to indicate. The meaning of the phrase
"remand « . o in custody . . « for a period not exceeding eight days at any
one time" was not entirely clear and he asked how those provisions were infter—
preted and enforced.

54. It was stated in the report of Cyprus, wder article 13 of the Covenant,
that deportation orders could be made with respect to aliens, mostly on the
grounds of public interest such as good government, or according to the

Spanish text la integridad del gobierno. He wondered what that expression was
supposed to mean.

55. With respect to article 19 of the Covenant, the report stated that the
Constitution of Cyprus stipulated that freedom of expression could be restricted
in order to maintain the auwthority axnd impartiality of the judiciary. He asked
in what way freedom of expression was connected w1th the maintenance of the
authority and impartiality of the Judiciary.

56. It appeared from the report (page 18, ) that the Turkish invasion

and unlawful occupation of 40 per cent of the Territory had brought about the
collective denial of all human rights and fundamental freedoms. Respect for human
rights in'the. area of Cyprus occupiad by Turkey, did not depend on the Cypriot Govern-
ment, but he would like to know the groundc for its statement that there was a cole
lective. denial of all human rights and fundanental freedoms in the occupied area.

57. Mr. LOUGAIDES (Cyprus) began by stating that, while he did not know the
exact number of inhabitants of the Sovereign Base Areas, he egtimated it at
between 2,000 and 4,000 persons. The Cypriot Government did not of course have
any jurisdiction over those Areas. The Declaration by the United Kingdom
Government regarding the administration of the Sovereign Base Areas stated:
"The laws applicable to the Cypriot population of the Sovereign Base Areas will
be, as far as possible, the same as the laws of the Republic", However, the
restrictive clause in that provision opened the way to derogations from the
laws of Cyprus. In the event of an arbitrary decls10n, for instance, there was
1o remedy in those Areas similar to that prov1ded for in article 146 of the
Cypriot Constitution. -




CCPR/C/SR.166
page 10

53. Obviously, in the event of 2 violation of human rights in those Areav, there.
was nothing the Cypriot Government could do ex cent make representations. the
United Kingdom Governmen?i - had recognized the juris dchlon of the “urooean Couro of
Humen. Rights for thoge Areas, ony such violations could also be “taken. to uho Court.

59. With regerd to article 11, waragreph 6 of the Constitution of Cyprus, uhere it
vas stated  (CCPR/C/1/Add.20, page 7) thal "The judge before whom the- persan
arrested is brought shsll promptly nroceed to inquire into the grounds of the
arrest', he explainéd that that provision was s gusrantee for the person arrested,.
It gave the court an opportunity to scrutinize the reasons for the arrest, and it
obliged the police officers who had made the arrest to give evidence and to be
oross~eyammned. : ’

60. In the same  paragraph, the rule that & person might not be remanded in custody
for a period exceeding eight days at any one time was a fucther guarantee for the |
accused since it preventod provisional detention from being unduly prolonded ,
There were many cases in which detention was necesuary, as for instance, when a
serious crime (such as murder) had been committed snd the accused person was""
liable to abscond, or to 1nf1uence potential witnesses.

61, With regard to the restrictions on freedom of expression with a view to
"malntalnlng the authority and impartiality of the judiciary"', which were referred
to in article 19, paragrsph 3, of the Constitution of Cyprus (CCPP/C/i/Add 23,
page 12),. he explained that the Hrovision in gquestion was directed sl publications
and views which tended to undermine” the prestige of the Judlclary and to influence
the judges, pending the hearing of a case for instance.. EREEERT

62, With respect to the power of the Attorney-General of the Republic to authorize
the seizure of newspapers oxr other printed maiter under parsgraph 4 of the same
article, “the Attorney-General had never actually used those povers. 4Although many
offending publications hod been printed, their authors had not been prosecuted and,
in one case, the Supreme Court had even declared that the fact of hav;ng to obLaln
a licence 1o publish a newspaper was unconstitutional.

63, It was no exaggeration to describe tue Turkish invasion and Turkey's unlauful
occupation of part of the:territory of Cyprus as s "collective denial of all human
rights. and fundamental freedoms” (CCPR/b/p/hdd.;o, page 18, C), since there had been
systematic, constant and massive violations of uuch human rights as the right to’
life (massacre of thousands of persons) to liberty (1nnumerab1e detentions), to
ownership of property (mass confiscations), and %o liberty of movement, to quote

but a few.

x

64. Mr. HANGA ssid that, as he understood it, the four fundamental sources in
matters of civil and political rights in Cyprus were the Constitution, the ordinary
laws, the Covenant and the Buropean Convention on Human Rights, namely, two domestic
sources and- two international ingtruments. He asked what would happen in the event :
of a conflict between the first and the c'econcx.

65. It was stipulated in article 28, 3aragraph 2, of the Constitution that "ev
person shall enjoy all the rights and liberties provided for in this Constitr”
unless there  is expregs provision to -the contrary in this Constltutlon"
(CCPR/G/1/AAd.28, page 2).




CCPR/C/SR,166
page 11 '

66, The report also stated (page 1) that the "Covenant which has been approved

by law 14 of 1969 of the Republic of Cyprus forms part of the municipal law of
Cyprus and with superior force to any other municipal law (article 169 (3) of the
Constltutlon)“ In fact, varagraph 3 of article 169 provided that "treaties,
conventions and agreements concluded in accordance with the foregoing wprovisions

of this Article shall have, as from their publication in the official Gazetté of
the Republic, superior force to any municipal law on condition that such treaties, .
conventions and agreements are applied by the other party thereto". - It was ’
" applicable therefore to bilateral treaties and not to multilateral ones. As those
provisions seemed somewhat contradictory, he would like to have further information
on the relative force of the different instruments concerned. '

67. Mr, LOUCAIDES (Cyprus) said that.the Constitution was the supreme law of the
Republic by virtue of article 179, and consequently took precedence over the
Covenant, However, no conflict with the Covenant had so far arisen.

68. Mr., TARNOPOLSKY said he thought it remarkable that, despite the difficulties
vhich the country was experiencing, the Government of Cyprus had refrained from
proclaiming a state of emergency or resorting to the derogations prov1ded for in
article 4 of the Covenant,

69. He emphasized the extent to which the part of the Constitution of Cyprus that
dealt with humen rights and fundamental freedoms accorded with the Covenant.
Nevertheless, he would once again ask, as he had done when the first report of
Cyprus was under consideration (CCPR/C/SR.27, para. 15), what restrictions could
be imposed on the exercise of the fundamental rights established in articles 18-22.

70. Articles 47 and 48 (Chanter 154) of the Criminal Code of Cyprus referred to
"seditious intention" (CCPR/C/l/Add 28, vage 13, under article 20 of the Covenant ).,
He agked if there had recently been any cases of persons found guilty of sedition
or treason and, if so, how many such cases there had been, what sentences had been
passed and how the concent of seditious intention had been interpreted,.

7l. He also asked what legal interpretation had been given tb the concept of
"constitutional order" referred to in article 21, paragravhs 3 and 4 of the
Constitution (CCPR/C/1/Add.28, vage 14).

72. Paragraph 3 of article 12 of the Constitution specified that "No law shall
provide for a punishment which is disproportionate to the gravity of the offence™
(CCPR/C/l/Add 28, page 8). That principle was subsumed vnder article 7 of the
Covenant and under article 8 of the Constitution of Cyprus. He asked whether
there had boen eny recent judicial dccisions baged on that provision.

73. With respect to remedies, articles 29 and 146 of the Constitution of Cyprus

gave the Supreme Court broad powers to ensure that fundamental rights were respected.
He would like to have some details of the actual application of those articles., Let
it be .supposed, for instance, that, in violation of article 11, paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Constitution, and of article 14, paragraph 3, of the Covenant,-a person was
arrested, taken to the police station, nrevented from contacting his lawyer and

held in custody for 72 hours - instead of the 24 hours allowed by law - during



CCPR/C/SR.166
page 12

which time he confessed to a serious offencé for which he was given a heavy prison
sentence, In such a case, he would like to know how that violation of the rights
laid down in the Constitution could be compensated and how the damage would be
assessed.,

T4+ Mr, TOMUSCHAT said he was afraid that the provisions of article 47 (Chaﬁtor 154)
of the Criminal Code restricting freedom of cxpression in the case of '"seditious:
intention" (CCPR/C/1/Add.28, page 13, under article 20 of the Covenant) might be
liable to abuse, Provisions of that kind could be uged by & Government to clamp
down on political opposition. It was desirable therefore for the wording of

articleg 47 and 48 (Chapter 154) of the Criminal Code to be reviewed, He would

like to know whether there had been any convictions on the vasis of tHoSe articles
and whether a person who advocated the establishment of a federal government in
Cyrrus would be subject to sanctions under them.

75. Mr, LOUCAIDES (Cyprus) said, with respeét to article 21 of the Congtitution,
that there had not yet bheen any judicial interpretation of the notion of :
constitutional order. If the matter did arise, it would undoubtedly be interpreted
in a very strict sense because it has been cstablished in the jurisprudence that
any restriction on human rights had to be construed as strictly as possible.

76. The provisions relating to "seditious intention" in articles 47 and 48
(Chapter 154) of the Criminal Code had been introduced under colonial rule but had
never becn applied.

77. The fact of advocating the establishment of a federal government in Cyprus was
not a breach of the law., In fact the law authorized all citizens to point out in
good faith errors and defects in the Government, the Constitution or the
administration of justice, and to persuade citizens in good faith to -attempt to .
procure changes by lawful means, through popular consensus.

78. The principle of »roportionality laid down in article 12, paragraph 3, of the
Constitution had often been applied. The Supreme Court had, for instance, ruled
that the following penalties werc disproporvionate - the demorition of illegally
constructed buildings, and the confiscation of goods held illegally (antiques).

79. On the subject of remedies, he said that a confession obtained in the
circumstances described by Mr. Tarnopolsky would not be accepted by the court.
Confessions extorted under influence were not admissible and the courts were very
strict on that point. The mere fact that a statement by the accused was very long
wag considered to be indicative of undue influence.

80. 1In conclusion, he said that the jurisprudence had made the Covenant into a
reality in Cynvrus.

81. The CIHAIRMAN thanked the delegation of Cyprus warmly on beha1£ of the Committee.
If the Government of Cyprus had any additional informaftion to communicate, the
Committee would be glad to be kept informed of developments.

The meeting rose at 6.20 n.m.




